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Non-Discrimination Policy Statement 
Cox College is committed to maintaining a community that values the worth and dignity of every person, and fosters 
understanding and mutual respect among its members. Cox College does not discriminate against any member of the 
College community on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, age, veteran status, political 
affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, marital status, or any other basis protected by law in its 
programs and activities. 

Inquiries concerning the non-discrimination policy or the procedure for filing a complaint should be addressed to Jana 
Roberts, Director of Compliance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator, 1423 N. Jefferson Avenue, Springfield, MO 65802, 
(417) 269-3598, compliance@coxcollege.edu, or to the Office for Civil Rights. 

mailto:compliance@coxcollege.edu
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INTRODUCTION 
 
The Cox College (or “College”) 2017 Annual Safety and Security Report is published in compliance with the Jeanne 
Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act (Clery Act) with guidance from The 
Handbook for Campus Safety and Security Reporting, U.S. Department of Education, Office of Postsecondary 
Education, The Handbook for Campus Safety and Security Reporting, 2016 Edition, Washington, D.C., 2016. 
 
The Director of Compliance and Assurance is responsible for preparing and publishing this annual report in 
compliance with the Clery Act. This report includes statistics for reported crimes that occurred on-campus; in 
certain off-campus buildings or property owned or controlled by Cox College; and on public property within, or 
immediately adjacent to and accessible from college property for the prior three (3) years. This report contains 
certain Cox College safety and security policy statements concerning alcohol and drug use, emergency response 
procedures, as well as crime reporting and prevention programs. 
 
The Director of Compliance and Assurance works with many other on-campus and off-campus departments, such 
as the CoxHealth Publ ic  Safety and Security Department and the Springfield Police Department to compile the 
necessary information. This report is available at https://ope.ed.gov/campussafety/#/institution/details.  Paper 
copies are available upon request to the Cox College Director of Compliance and Assurance at (417) 269-3598. 
 
 
THE CLERY ACT 
 

In 1990, Congress approved the Crime Awareness and Campus Security Act of 1990, 20 USC 1092(f), a federal law 
that amended the Higher Education Act of 1865. The 1998 amendments renamed the law the Jeanne Clery 
Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act in memory of Jeanne Clery, a student who 
was slain in her dorm room in 1986. 
 
As a freshman at Lehigh University in 1986, Jeanne Clery was raped and murdered in her residence hall room by 
a student she did not know. Her parents lobbied Congress to enact the law after discovering students at Lehigh 
had not been notified about 38 violent crimes that had occurred on campus in the three years prior to their 
daughter’s murder. The Act is now known as the “Clery Act” in memory of Jeanne Clery is in section 485(f) of the 
HEA. The Clery Act mandates higher education institutions in the United States participating in federal student aid 
programs publish and disseminate annual information about crime on and around their campuses.  The Clery Act 
is enforced by the United States Department of Education. 
 
In 2013, the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) was signed into law.  VAWA includes 
amendments to the Clery Act. These changes require institutions to disclose statistics, policies and programs 
related to dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking, among other changes. 
The Clery Act requires Cox College to: 
 

• Publish an annual report containing three (3) years of campus crime statistics and certain campus  
 security policy statements; 
 

• Disclose crime statistics for the campus, public areas immediately adjacent to or running through the 
campus, and certain non-campus facilities and remote classrooms.  The statistics must be gathered from 
campus security, local law enforcement, and other college officials who have “significant responsibility 
for student and campus activities”; 

 

• Provide “timely warning” notices of those crimes (without disclosing the names of any victims) that
  have occurred and pose an ongoing “threat to students and employees”; 

https://ope.ed.gov/campussafety/#/institution/details
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• Implement emergency notification procedures if there is an immediate threat to the health or safety of 

students or employees on campus; and 
 

• Disclose in a public crime log “any crime that occurred on campus…or within the patrol jurisdiction of the 
campus policy or the campus security department and is reported to the campus police or security 
department.” 

 
 
CAMPUS OVERVIEW 
 

 

Cox College, located in Springfield, Missouri, is a private health professions institution with an enrollment of 
approximately 900 students. The population of the Springfield, Missouri metropolitan statistical area is  
approximately 500,000. The safety and security of every member of the Cox College community is paramount. The 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department is primarily responsible for preventing crime and maintaining a safe 
learning environment for all members of the College community and its visitors. To promote, strengthen and support 
campus safety, the Clery Annual Security Report is available to current and prospective students and employees on 
the College website.  The  reality  is that  no community is immune from crime, but fortunately, Cox College has not 
experienced a large number of crimes throughout the years on or near its campus location. 
 
Clery Geographical Area 
Cox College (on-campus property) is situated within the Cox Medical Center North building of the CoxHealth 
campuses.  Division Street borders the College to the north, Boonville Street to the west, Benton Avenue to the 
east, and Lynn Avenue to the south.  Jefferson Avenue and Robberson Avenue both run adjacent, north to south, 
to the college’s entrances and parking lots.  Public property would include the sidewalk, street, and sidewalk. 
 

 
CoxHealth Clinical Sites 
Cox College students access areas of CoxHealth for clinical sites.  The main clinical site areas are found at Cox 
South; however, clinical sites are also located through the region. Cox Branson and Cox South’s crime statistics are 
reported annually to students as part of the ASR statistical data, although that location is not considered an on 
campus or non-campus location by Clery geography standards. 
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DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS 
 
Aggravated Assault  
An unlawful attack by one person upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe or aggravated bodily injury. 
This type of assault is usually accompanied by the use of a weapon or by other means likely to produce death or 
great bodily harm. It is not necessary that injury result from an aggravated assault when a gun, knife, or other 
weapon is used which could or probably would result in a serious potential injury if the crime were successfully 
completed. 
 
Arson 
Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling house, public 
building, motor vehicle or aircraft, or personal property of another. 
 
Battery 
Intentionally causing physical harm to someone, regardless of if a weapon is involved. 
 
Burglary 
The unlawful entry into a structure to commit a felony or theft. For reporting purposes, this definition includes 
unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or felony; breaking and entering with intent to commit a larceny; 
housebreaking; safe-cracking; and any other type attempts to commit any of the aforementioned. 
 
Campus Security Authority 

1. A campus law enforcement unit; 
2. Any individual or organization specified in an institution's statement of campus security policy as an 

individual or organization to whom students and employees should report criminal offenses; and 
3. An official of an institution who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities but 

does not have significant counseling responsibilities. 
 
Campus Official 
A “Campus Security Authority” as designated under the Clery Act or a “Responsible Employee” as defined under Title 
IX.  The College has defined “Responsible Employees” for the purposes of mandatory reporting and encourages all 
employees to report crimes reported to them to the CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department or to the 
Director of Compliance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator, or designee, within 24 hours.  If a crime meets the 
designation of a timely warning, it should be reported sooner so that the campus can make the appropriate notification 
to college constituents.  If a crime meets the criteria for a Clery reportable crime, it will be included in the statistics in the 
Annual Security Report.  In the case of sexual harassment or sexual violence, identifying information about the victim 
may be disclosed to the Director of Compliance and Assurance, Title IX Coordinator, or designee. 
 
Coercion  
The use of an unreasonable amount of pressure to force someone else to engage in an activity in which she/he 
does not want to engage. 
 
Consent 
Consent is informed and freely and actively given. Consent is communicated through mutually understandable 
words or actions that indicate willingness by all of the involved parties to engage in the same sexual activity, at 
the same time, and in the same way.  Clear and open communication is an essential element to conveying and 
understanding consent. Any person who contemplates initiating any form of sexual activity is strongly 
encouraged to talk with all involved parties before engaging in such activity. While it is the responsibility of the 
initiator of a specific sexual activity to obtain consent, individuals should communicate as clearly and verbally as 
possible with all parties about what they do and do not want. 
 
Consent is not present when one is incapable of consent, by reason of intoxication or incapacitation due to drugs 
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or alcohol, when subject to coercion or threat of coercion, or subject to force. Consent to conduct does not occur 
when a person is incapable of evaluating the nature of the conduct, incapable of declining participation in, or 
communicating unwillingness to engage in, a sexual act or other acts. Submission to conduct does not mean the 
conduct was welcome or consensual; in other words, the absence of “no” does not mean “yes.” 
 
Crime Statistics  
Crimes that must be disclosed, such as criminal homicide, murder, negligent manslaughter, sex offenses such as rape, 
fondling, incest, and statutory rape, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft, arson; hate crimes such 
as larceny-theft, simple assault, intimidation, destruction/damage/vandalism of property; arrests and disciplinary 
actions for liquor law violations, drug law violations, and illegal weapons violations. 
 
Domestic Violence 
Includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of a 
victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has 
cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse or the victim 
under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction […], or by any other person against an adult or youth 
victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction. 
 

• Missouri’s definition of domestic violence can be found at Mo. Rev. Stat. § 455.010. 
• Under Missouri law, domestic violence also includes the crime of “domestic assault” which can be found at 

Mo. Rev. Stat. §§ 565.072-565.074. 
 

Dating Violence 
Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the 
victim.  The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party’s statement and with 
consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of the relationship, and the frequency of interaction between 
the persons involved in the relationship. 
 

• Missouri law does not specifically define dating violence, but conduct of this nature is covered by Missouri’s 
definitions of domestic violence and domestic assault. 

 
Drug Abuse Violations 
Violations of laws prohibiting the production, distribution, and/or use of certain controlled substances and the 
equipment or devices utilized in their preparation and/or use.  The unlawful cultivation, manufacture, 
distribution, sale, purchase, use, possession, transportation or importation of any controlled drug or narcotic 
drugs.  The relevant substances include: opium or cocaine and their derivatives (morphine, heroin, codeine); 
marijuana; synthetic narcotics – manufactured narcotics which can cause true addition (Demerol, methadone); 
and dangerous nonnarcotic drugs (barbiturates, Benzedrine). 
 
Force  
To attempt to or succeed at engaging in behavior with another without that individual’s consent.  Force can be 
committed by using threats, intimidation, coercion, or physical means. 
 
Gender-based Harassment 
Unwelcome conduct of a nonsexual nature based on a person’s actual or perceived sex, including conduct based on 
gender identity, gender expression, and nonconformity with gender stereotypes. 
 
Harassment 
Behavior that creates fear or emotional distress to an individual. 
 
Hate Crimes 
A criminal offense committed against a person or property which is motivated, in whole or in part, by the offender’s 
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bias. Bias is a preformed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of persons based on their race, gender, religion, 
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, ethnicity, or national origin. The Violence Against Women Act (VAMA), which 
amended, inter alia, the Clery Act, added reported dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking instances to the Hate 
Crimes category. 
 
Liquor Law Violations 
The violation of laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacturing, selling, transporting, furnishing, and 
possessing of intoxicating liquor; maintaining unlawful drinking places; bootlegging; operating a still; furnishing 
liquor to a minor or intemperate person; using a vehicle for illegal transportation of liquor; drinking on a train or 
public conveyance; and attempts to commit any of the aforementioned. (Drunkenness and driving under the 
influence are not covered in this definition.) 
 
On-Campus Building or Property 

1. Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous 
geographic area and used by the institution in direct support of, or in a manner related to, the 
institution's educational purposes; and 

2. Any building or property that is within or reasonably contiguous to the area identified in paragraph (1) of 
this definition, that is owned by the institution but controlled by another person, is frequently used by 
students, and supports of institutional purposes (such as food or other retail vendor).  

 
 Non-Campus Building or Property 

1.  Any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization recognized by the institution*; or 
2.  Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution that is in direct support of, or in relation, 

to the institution's educational purposes, is frequently used by students, and is not within the same 
reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution. 

   *Cox College currently has no officially recognized student organizations with off-campus locations. 
 

Public Property 
All public property including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks, and parking facilities, that is within the campus or  
immediately adjacent to and accessible from campus. Cox College crime statistics do not include crimes that occur 
in privately owned homes or businesses within or adjacent to the campus boundaries. 
 
Responsible Employees  
Cox College defines “responsible employees” as those employees who: 

• have the authority to take action to redress sexual violence or other forms of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation prohibited by this Policy;  

 
• have been given the duty or reporting incidents of sexual violence or any other misconduct by students to the 

Director of Compliance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator or other appropriate school designee; or, 
 

• who could reasonably be believed to have this authority or duty. 
 

Responsible employees include, but are not limited to: faculty members, managers, directors, department heads, 
deans, vice presidents, president, and public safety officers. 
 
Robbery 
The taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody, or control of a person or persons by 
force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the victim in fear. 

 
Sexual Assault 
Non-consensual sexual activity that meets the definition of fondling, rape, incest, or statutory rape.  It may involve the 
use of force or the threat of force. 
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Sex Discrimination  
Sex discrimination occurs when persons are excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of, any College 
program or activity because of their sex.  

Sexual Exploitation 
Occurs when a person takes sexual advantage of another person for the benefit of anyone other than that person 
without that person’s consent. 
 
Sexual Violence 
Sexual violence is a particularly severe form of prohibited sexual harassment.  Sexual violence includes physical sexual 
acts perpetrated against a person’s will or where a person is incapable of giving consent because of his or her 
temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity, because he or she is below the minimum age of consent in 
the applicable jurisdiction, or because of his or her incapacitation due to the use of drugs and/or alcohol.  Other types 
of conduct may also constitute sexual violence. 

Sexual Misconduct 
“Sexual misconduct” is an umbrella term covering sex discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual violence, domestic 
violence, dating violence, and stalking. 
 
Sexual Harassment 
Sexual harassment is unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature and includes sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
and other verbal, physical, visual, or digital/electronic conduct of a sexual nature when: 

• Submission to such conduct is made or threatened to be made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term 
or condition of an individual’s employment or education, 

 
• Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used or threatened to be used as the 

basis for academic or employment decisions affecting that individual, or 
 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual’s academic or 
professional performance or creating what a reasonable person would perceive as an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive employment, education, or living environment. 

Stalking 
Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to (A) fear for his 
or her safety or the safety of others; or (B) suffer substantial emotional distress. 
 

• Stalking can include conduct that occurs via electronic communications, including social media (i.e., 
“cyberstalking”). 

• Missouri’s definition of stalking can be found at Mo. Rev. Stat. § 455.010 and § 565.225.  

 
CAMPUS CRIME STATISTICS REPORT 
 

 

 
Preparation and Disclosure of Annual Crime Statistics 
Cox College complies with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act (20 
U.S.C. §1092(f)) and the Drug-Free Schools policies as outlined by the federal government. Crime statistics provided in 
Cox College’s Annual Security Report are based upon incidents reported by campus security authorities and local 
police agencies. Cox College annually reports statistics for the three (3) most recent calendar years concerning the 
occurrence on campus, in or on non-campus buildings or property, and on public property (as those terms are defined 
and interpreted for purposes of the Clery Act) for occurrences of murder, manslaughter, sexual misconduct, including, 
(forcible and non-forcible) sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking, robbery, arson, aggravated 
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assault, burglary, and motor vehicle theft; statistics on arrests for violations of liquor or drug abuse as well as 
weapons possession violations; disciplinary referrals for liquor, drug and weapons violations; and statistics on Hate 
Crimes that are reported to local police agencies or to campus security authorities.  

The CoxHealth Security Services Department, in consultation with the Cox College Director of Compliance and 
Assurance, will make the determination as to whether a reportable offense has occurred. These reports are compiled 
to prepare the annual Campus Crime and Security Survey for submission to the United State Department of 
Education, Office of Postsecondary Education. This report will be made available to the public by October 1st of each 
year. This report is posted to the Cox College website for viewing. The most recent report can be found at 
https://ope.ed.gov/campussafety/#/institution/details.  To request a hard copy of the Annual Security Report, make a 
personal request, written request, email or phone request to the Director of Compliance and Assurance. 

Crime Log 
The College is required to keep a daily log containing the following information: 

1. The nature, date, time, and general location of each crime; and
2. The disposition of the complaint (if known).

This log must be available for public inspection within two (2) business days of the initial incident report unless 
such disclosure (or parts of) is prohibited by law or would jeopardize the confidentiality of the victim or the 
conduct of an investigation, cause a suspect to flee or evade detection, or result in the destruction of evidence. 
Upon the elimination of these conditions, such information would again be available for public inspection.  Logs 
are maintained by the CoxHealth Publ ic  Safety and Security Department and may be viewed during regular 
business hours. (8:00 am – 4:00 pm).  For more information, contact CoxHealth Public Safety and Security at 417-
269-6120. 

Cox College Crime Statistics  
The tables below provides information on the criminal offenses reported to campus security authorities or local 
law enforcement agencies by students, employees and/or visitors during calendar years 2014 - 2016. 

Type of Crime 
Main 

Campus 
Cox South 
(Clinicals) 

MOHR 
Cox 

Branson 
Non 

Campus* 
Public 

Property* 
Aggravated  Assault 
2014 0 10 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 1 0 N/A 1 * 
2016 0 0 0 3 0 * 
Arson 
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Burglary 
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 10 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 1 * 
Motor Vehicle Theft 
2014 1 3 1 N/A 3 4* 
2015 2 3 0 N/A 3 5* 
2016 0 5 2 0 0 * 
Murder/Manslaughter 
 2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 *

https://ope.ed.gov/campussafety/#/institution/details
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Type of Crime 
Main 
Camp

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Cox South 
(Clinicals) 

MOHR 
Cox 

Branson 
Non-

Campus* 
 

Public 
Property* 

Robbery       
2014 0 1 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Forcible Sex Offenses       
2014 1 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 1 0 * 
Rape       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Fondling       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 1 0 * 
Incest 
 
 

      
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 

2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Statutory Rape       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Stalking       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 1 0 0 0 0 * 
Domestic Violence       
2014 1 1 1 N/A 3 * 
2015 0 1 0 N/A 2 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Dating Violence       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 

ARRESTS  
Liquor Law Violations 
 
 

      
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Drug Violations       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 1 1 0 N/A 1 * 
2016 0 1 0 0 0 * 
Weapons Violations       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 
2015 1 0 0 N/A 0 1 
2016 0 2 0 0 0 * 
NON-ARREST CAMPUS REFERRALS  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Liquor Law Violations 
 

      
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
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Drug Violations       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 
Weapons Violations       
2014 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2015 0 0 0 N/A 0 * 
2016 0 0 0 0 0 * 

 
There were no reported hate crimes in 2014 or 2015.  There was one (1) hate crime reported in 2016 regarding 
intimidation on the basis of national origin. For Hate Crimes, categories of prejudice (based on actual or 
perceived race, gender, religion, sexual orientation, ethnicity, disability, national origin or gender identity.) Hate 
crimes may also include larceny-theft, simple assault, intimidation, and destruction, damage, or vandalism of 
property. 
 

*Cox College obtained limited crime information from local law enforcement but it could not be determine if the 
information was for College’s Clery Act geography and/or included crimes committed on private property or within private 
residences and businesses. 

 
 

CAMPUS SAFETY & SECURITY 
 

 
Cox College strives to continually provide the safest environment possible for its students, employees, and visitors.  
Safety and security tips are listed in the Student and Faculty Portal, reviewed in student and employee orientations, 
on the College website www.coxcollege.edu, and by visiting CoxHealth Public Safety and Security website at  
https://connect.coxhealth.com/securityservices/SitePages/Home.aspx to help prevent incidents from occurring on or 
near campus. 
 
Incident Reporting  
All safety and security incidents should be reported to CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department upon 
occurrence.  In addition, other College officials with significant responsibility for student and campus activities may be 
called upon for the purpose of making timely incident reports.  
 

To report a crime or a non-emergency incident on the Cox College or CoxHealth campus, call 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security by calling the operator by dialing zero (0) or, from an outside 

phone line, 417-269-6000. 
 

To report a crime in progress or an emergency on campus, call CoxHealth Public Safety and Security 
Department at 333 or 911; from outside the CoxHealth phone system, call 417-269-3333 or 911. 

 
 

Operators are available at these respective telephone numbers 24 hours a day to answer your call.  
 A security officer will investigate a report when it is deemed appropriate. 

 
Crimes should be reported to the CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department to ensure inclusion in the annual 
crime statistics and to aid in providing timely warning notices to the community, when appropriate; for example, a 
crime that was reported only to a rape crisis center would not be included in the annual crime statistics. 
 
Campus Security Authority 
The following CoxHealth and Cox College departments/positions listed in Table 2 have been designated as campus 
security authority, serving as points of contact for the reporting of potential criminal actions and other emergencies 
at Cox College.  If someone has a significant responsibility for student and campus activities, he/she is a campus 
security authority.  This list includes, but is not limited to, campus safety and security personnel, members of 

http://www.coxcollege.edu/
https://connect.coxhealth.com/securityservices/SitePages/Home.aspx
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administration, deans, department directors, and center and program directors. 
 

   Table 2 
Department Phone Number 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department – Cox North 417-269-3715 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department – Cox South 417-269-6120 
College President 417-269-3402 
Director of Compliance and Assurance 417-269-3598 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 417-269-3406 
Vice President of Student Affairs and College Development 417-269-3469 
Vice President of Business and Finance 417-269-3473 
Vice President of College Services and Institutional Research 417-269-8423 
Dean of Interprofessional Education 417-269-8316 
Undergraduate Nursing Chair 
 

417-269-8619 
MSN Department Chair 417-269-3076 
MSOT Department Chair 
 

417-269-3334 
RSI Department Chair 
 
 

417-269-3063 
MND Department Chair 417-269-3040 
Director of Library Services 417-269-3051 
Student Support Coordinator 417-269-3225 

 
Confidential Reporting of Crimes 
Victims or witnesses may report crimes on a voluntary, confidential basis for inclusion in the annual disclosure of 
crime statistics by mailing a written statement or by calling the CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department. 
The purpose of a confidential report is to comply with one’s wishes to keep the matter confidential, while taking 
steps to ensure the future safety of the victim, witnesses and others.  With such information, the College can 
keep an accurate record of the number of incidents involving students, determine where there is a pattern of 
crime with regard to a particular location, method, or assailant, and alert the campus community to potential 
danger. 
 
The Violence against Women Act (VAWA) allows for confidentiality by prohibiting the sharing of personally 
identifying information about victims without informed, written consent. The College will protect as fully as possible 
the identity of persons who report having been victims of dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and 
stalking. 
 
Relationship with Local Law Enforcement 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security officers are Missouri POST certified and armed.  The CoxHealth Public Safety 
and Security Department maintains a close working relationship with the Springfield Police Department (SPD).  The 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department staff occasionally works with other law enforcement agencies in the 
Springfield Greene County area, including the FBI, Federal Marshals, U.S. Secret Service, Missouri State Highway 
Patrol, and the Greene County Sheriff.  Meetings are held between the leaders of these agencies on both a formal and 
informal basis.  The officers of the CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department and the SPD communicate 
regularly on the scene of incidents that occur in and around the campus area.  The CoxHealth Public Safety and 
Security Department leadership works closely with the investigative staff at the SPD when incidents arise that require 
joint investigative efforts, resources, crime-related reports, and exchanges of information, as deemed necessary.  
There is no written memorandum of understanding between CoxHealth and the SPD. 
 
If assistance is required from the Springfield Police Department or Fire Department, the security officer will contact 
the appropriate unit.  If a sexual assault or rape should occur, staff on the scene, including the security officer, will 
offer the survivor a wide variety of services.  CoxHealth has a Sexual Assault Crisis Consultation Team that has trained 
members who are available to assist a survivor 24 hours a day. 
 
Major offenses such as rape, murder, aggravated assault, robbery, and auto theft are reported to the local police and 
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investigators, with joint investigative effort, with the Springfield Police Department being the primary investigators 
who are deployed to solve these serious felony crimes.  The prosecution of all criminal offenses, both felony and 
misdemeanor, are conducted at either the city Municipal Court or the Greene County Courthouse. 
 
Security Awareness and Crime Prevention Programs 
The following programs are specifically designed to inform students and employees about campus security 
procedures and practices and to encourage responsibility for self and others on campus: 

 
• New Student Orientation  
• New Employee Orientation via HealthStream 
• Faculty and staff meetings 
• Online training through SafeColleges and/or Canvas 
• Printed posters, brochures, and flyers concerning violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, drug 

and alcohol awareness 
• Re sour ce s available to all students and employees through the Student or Staff Portal and on the 

CoxHealth intranet 
• Sexual Harassment/Sexual Violence Awareness programs including prevention and bystander  
• education (annual, usually in April each year) 
• SHARPS/self-defense courses (offered by Public Safety and Security) 
• Fire Safety Awareness and Drills (each semester) 
• Email and College website notices 

 
Campus Access Policy  
CoxHealth campuses are normally open to the public daily between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:30 p.m.; however, 
the College’s entrance is monitored and is accessed by a photo ID badge swipe reader. All college constituents are 
expected to wear their photo ID badges while on campus. Between the hours of 9:30 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., all 
CoxHealth campuses are locked down, and public access is restricted. At the Cox North/Cox College campus, access 
during the lockdown hours is through the emergency department entrance (on Robberson) only. At Cox South, public 
access is through the emergency department entrance and the West Pavilion outpatient entrance. At the Meyer 
Orthopedic and Rehabilitation Hospital (MORH), there is no public access during lockdown hours. The Cox North/Cox 
College campus and the MORH have employee/ student access during lockdown hours utilizing a proxy card reader. 
Emergencies may necessitate changes or alterations to any posted schedules.  
 
Photo IDs 
All students are required to obtain and display the CoxHealth photo ID at ALL times when they are at Cox South, Cox 
North, and Cox College and at any other clinical site. The ID is to be visible on the chest with the picture facing out at 
all times. Forms to obtain the Cox College student identification are available at the Front Desk at the College or at 
new student orientation. Pictures are taken at Cox College in the admissions department. There is no cost for the Cox 
photo ID when it is first acquired, but there is a fee for a replacement ID. The photo ID must be returned to Cox 
College or CoxHealth upon graduation, withdrawal, or leave of absence. The Cox photo ID will also be necessary to 
access the College, as the main doors to the college are on a security-entry system. The photo ID is part of a student 
safety process. The photo ID MUST be worn to ALL classes at Cox College. Cox College has adopted a NO tolerance 
policy regarding IDs. A student will not be allowed to remain on campus without a photo ID.  

 
PREVENTING AND RESPONDING TO SEXUAL MISCONDUCT 
 
Cox College will not tolerate domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking or any other forms of 
sexual misconduct. In accordance with Cox College’s Non-discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint 
Procedures, the College utilizes procedures that provide prompt, fair and impartial investigation and resolution of 
the reported incident. 



 

15 | P a g e   

 
Prohibition of Sexual Misconduct 
Title IX prohibits sex discrimination including sexual assault, stalking and other forms of sexual misconduct. It also 
includes discrimination, harassment and retaliation on the basis of sex or gender in employment, admission, 
participation and other matters related to education programs or activities operated by recipients of Federal financial 
assistance. Sexual assault, stalking and other sexual misconduct is a form of sexual harassment and, as such, is sex 
discrimination prohibited by Title IX. Sexual violence refers to physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person’s will 
or where a person is incapable of giving consent due to incapacity, and/or intellectual or other disability. This can 
include, but is not limited to, rape, sexual battery, sexual violence, sexual assault, and sexual coercion. 
 
Cox College is committed to maintaining a community that values the worth and dignity of every person, and fosters 
understanding and mutual respect among its members. Cox College does not discriminate against any member of the 
College community on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, age, veteran status, political 
affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, marital status, or any other basis protected by law in its 
programs and activities. 
 
Harassment consists of unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical, digital/electronic, or visual, based on a 
person’s protected status such as age, sex, color, disability, marital status, race, religion, ethnic or national origin, and 
any other basis protected by law. Sex discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of pregnancy, gender 
identity, and failure to conform to stereotypical notions of femininity and masculinity. Sexual violence is a severe 
form of sexual harassment prohibited by this Policy. The College will not tolerate, condone, or subject anyone to any 
form of harassment. In addition to being illegal, any form of prohibited harassment violates the dignity of the 
individual and the integrity of the College as an institution of learning. 
 
Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint Procedures 
Sexual abuse, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking of students and/or employees at Cox College are 
considered acts of criminal behavior and are not tolerated. Cox College policy requests an immediate reporting of 
sexual misconduct/harassment to a responsible employee or the Title IX Coordinator.  The complete policy and 
procedures can be found on the Cox College website and on the CoxHealth intranet > Policy Manager > Cox College. 
 
Following the initiation of a Title IX complaint, the College will investigate the case, as well as assist the individual 
in reporting the offense to the local police, if requested to do so.  The College will also provide contact 
information to counseling, health, mental health, victim advocacy and legal assistance available in the 
community.  After an alleged sex offense, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incident is reported, at 
the victim’s request, the College will attempt to make changes to his/her academic,  c l in i ca l ,  and working 
situations to avoid a hostile environment if options are reasonably available. 
 
Reporting Sexual Assault 
Reporting a sexual assault may help to prevent another assault.  Reporting the incident does not mean the victim 
must proceed with a prosecution.  Immediately following the incident, the victim should try and write down 
everything he/she remembers about the incident.  In accordance with the Cox College Non-
discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint Procedures and the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), students 
are encouraged to report incidents of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking to the 
Director of Compliance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator, other ‘responsible employee’ at Cox College, or 
CoxHealth Public Safety and Security Department. 
 
When receiving a report of a sexual assault incident, the recipient of the report, including law   enforcement and 
campus authorities: (i) may notify the victim of the option to notify local police, (ii) assist the victim if they choose 
in notifying law enforcement, and (iii) give the victim the right to decline to notify authorities. Although the 
College will do its best to respect the rights and requests of the victim, it must also balance its institutional 
responsibilities to follow federal, state, and local rules regarding orders of protection, no contact orders, 
restraining orders, or similar lawful orders issued by criminal, civil, or tribal courts. 
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Victims’ Rights 
Students or employees reporting victimization of domestic or dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, will be 

provided their written rights, which are: 
• To be assisted by campus authorities if reporting a crime to local law enforcement 
• Change academic, clinical, or working situations to avoid a hostile environment 
• Obtain or enforce a no contact directive or restraining order 
• Have a clear description of Cox College’s disciplinary process and know the range of possible sanctions  
• Receive contact information about existing counseling, heath, mental health, victim advocacy, legal 

assistance, and other services available in the community 
 

Community Resources for Victims of Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, and Stalking 
Family Violence Center, Inc. 
P.O. Box 5972, Springfield MO 65802 
Phone: 417-837-7700 (shelter)                
Hotline/Crisis:  417-864-7233; 800-831-6863 

 
Harmony House 
519 E Cherry (PO Box 5972), Springfield, MO 65806 
Office:  417-837-7700 
800-831-6863 

 
H.I.T.  No More 
1325 W. Sunshine St., Box 175, Springfield, MO 65807 
Office:  417-869-8332 
 
Legal Services of Southern Missouri – SW 
809 N. Campbell, Springfield, MO 65802 
Office:  417-881-1397 
Hotline/Toll-free:   800-444-4863 

 
Missouri Coalition against Domestic Violence (www.mocadv.org) 
415 E. McCarty, Jefferson City, MO 65101 
(573) 634-4161 

 
Rape Crisis and Sexual Abuse Center  
519 E. Cherry, Springfield, MO 65806 
417- 864-7233 

 
The Victim Center 
819 N. Boonville Ave, Springfield, MO 
65802 417-863-7273 

 
Disciplinary Procedures 
In accordance with Title IX and the Col lege’s Non-discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint Procedures, it 
is Cox College’s goal to provide a prompt, fair, and impartial investigation and resolution, which shall be 
conducted by Cox College officials who receive annual training on issues related to domestic and dating violence, 
sexual assault/harassment, and stalking along with how to conduct an investigation and hearing process that 
protects the safety of the victim(s) and promotes accountability. During a disciplinary action, the accuser and the 
accused will be afforded equal opportunities to present relevant witnesses and other evidence during a 
disciplinary proceeding. Cox College uses a “preponderance of the evidence” (e.g., more likely than not) standard 
during all disciplinary proceedings. 
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It is Cox College’s intent to preserve the confidentiality of any complaint to the fullest extent; however, it cannot 
guarantee absolute confidentiality. While the accuser’s wishes regarding confidentiality will be considered, they 
must be balanced against the College’s responsibility to respond to such reports and the rights of the person 
accused of sexual harassment, violence, or discrimination to be informed of the allegations against them, 
including their source. Cox College will limit disclosures to what is reasonably necessary to conduct a fair 
investigation and determine appropriate disciplinary recommendations. All participants in an investigation will be 
advised that they are obliged to maintain confidentiality as well. 
 
Pursuant to Title IX, Cox College’s Non-discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint Procedures, and the 
Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), the Director  of  Compl iance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator (or 
designee) will notify, simultaneously, all concerned parties, including the accuser and the accused, in writing of 
the outcome of the investigation and Cox College’s appeals process. The accuser will be notified generally if the 
complaint has been referred for disciplinary action, but will not be informed of the details of the recommended 
disciplinary action without the consent of the accused. Compliance here does not constitute a violation of the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. 1232(g)). The accuser and the accused are entitled to the 
same opportunities to have others present during an institutional disciplinary proceeding, including the 
opportunity to be accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by an advisor of their choice. 
 
A student found guilty of violating the College’s policy on domestic violence, dating violence, stalking, and sexual 
assault could be criminally prosecuted in the state courts and may be suspended or dismissed from the College.  
Other possible sanctions include – but are not limited to – written reprimand, probation, restrictions from being in 
certain areas and/or buildings on campus, formal behavior plan, demotion, designated persona non grata as to the 
College’s campuses.  Other remedial measures may include monitoring, counseling, or Title IX training. In the case of 
an employee, employment may be terminated immediately, at the discretion of the College, or an employee may be 
suspended either with or without pay, placed on probation or terminated, or be subject to such other disciplinary 
actions as determined by Human Resources. 
 
Full disciplinary action may be imposed following the final determination of an institutional disciplinary 
proceeding regarding domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking or any other sex offense. 
Further, based upon the circumstances following a final determination of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, stalking or any other sex offense, Cox College will make reasonable attempts to change to the 
affected student’s academic and clinical situations if options are reasonably available. 
 
Sanctions and Protective Measures 
In all cases, investigations that result in a finding of more likely than not that a violation of the Non-
discrimination/Harassment Policy occurred will lead to the initiation of disciplinary procedures against the 
accused individual. Cox College sanctions can include reprimands, letters of apology, alcohol treatment, 
counseling, community service, no-contact orders, suspension, demotion, and termination, in accordance with 
college policy.   Multiple sanctions may be applied.  The College may implement protective measures following 
the report of dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and/or stalking, which may include some or all of 
the following options: counseling; changes in academic, clinical, transportation, or work situations; and no-
contact orders. 
 
For students, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking are violations of the Student 
Conduct Code.  Employees who violate this policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including, termination of 
employment.  Dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking are criminal acts, which also may 
subject the perpetrator to criminal and civil penalties under federal and state law. 
 
The Director of Compliance and Assurance/Title IX Coordinator in conjunction with the CoxHealth Public Safety and 
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Security Department, will determine whether interim interventions and protective measures should be 
implemented, and if so, will take steps to implement those protective measures as soon as possible.  Some 
examples of protective measures include, but are not limited to, an order of no contact, adjustment of course 
schedules, special arrangements for class/clinical learning environments, a leave of absence, or reassignment.  
These remedies may be applied to one, both, or multiple parties involved.  Violations of the Title IX coordinator’s 
directives and/or protective measures will constitute related violations that may lead to additional disciplinary 
action.  Protective measures imposed may be temporary pending the results of an investigation or may become 
permanent as determined by Cox College.  The college will maintain as confidential any accommodations or 
protective measures provided to the victim, as long as the maintenance of confidentiality does not impair the 
ability of the college to provide such accommodations or protective measures. 
 
Retaliation 
Cox College’s Non-discrimination/Harassment Policy and Complaint Procedures  prohibits retaliation against anyone 
who exercises his or her rights under the Clery Act or Title IX. 
 
Sex Offender Registration and Community Notification 
Under provisions of the Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act 
(Wetterling Act), any person who is required to register under a state sex offender registration program must notify 
the state when he or she enrolls at an institution of higher education or is employed at such an institution and must 
notify the state of any change in enrollment or employment at an institution of higher education. Sex offender 
registration information is to be transmitted from each state to the law enforcement entities where the registered 
sex offenders reside. In Missouri, the sex offender list is maintained at the county level.   
 
Members of the College Community who wish to be informed of the identities of registered sex offenders who reside 
in Greene County or a surrounding county may access this information through the following links:   
Missouri State Highway Patrol Registry Sex Offenders List, Greene County Sex Offenders List, Christian County Sex 
Offenders List, Lawrence County Sex Offenders List, Polk County Sex Offenders List. 

 
Active Bystander Intervention 
A bystander is someone who observes problematic behavior or a dangerous situation and has the opportunity to 
intervene. If you see something, say something. Contact CoxHealth security or other authorities, provide the 
victim with support, or report to campus or local counseling/crisis center for support and options. 

Be careful not to put yourself in harm’s way. However, bystanders play a critical role in the prevention of sexual 
and relationship violence. As an active bystander, you are not directly involved but have the choice to intervene, 
speak up, or do something about it. 

Cox College wants to promote a culture of community accountability where bystanders are actively engaged in 
the prevention of violence without causing further harm. Below is a list of some ways to be an active bystander. If 
you or someone else is in immediate danger, dial 911. This could be when a person is yelling at or being physically 
abusive towards another and it is not safe for you to interrupt. 

• Watch out for your friends and fellow students/employees. If you see someone who looks like they could 
be in trouble or need help, ask if they are ok. 

• Confront people who seclude, hit on, try to make out with, or have sex with people who are 
incapacitated. 

• Speak up when someone discusses plans to take advantage of another person. 
• Believe someone who discloses sexual assault, abusive behavior, or experience with stalking. 
• Refer people to on-campus or community resources listed in this document for support in health, 

counseling, or with legal assistance. 
 
 

http://www.mshp.dps.missouri.gov/CJ38/search.jsp
https://www.springfieldcrimealert.com/sex_offenders.php
http://www.christiancountysheriff.net/sex-offenders/
http://www.christiancountysheriff.net/sex-offenders/
http://lawrencecosheriff.com/sex_offenders.php
http://www.polkcountymosheriff.org/
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Prevention/Educational Programs  
During orientation presentations, students are informed of services offered by the CoxHealth Public Safety and 
Security Department. The Office for Compliance and Assurance presents primary prevention and awareness 
programs in-person, via online training programs, and via email blasts/signage/handouts.  During these 
prevention and awareness programs, students learn that Cox College prohibits domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, and stalking, definitions of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and 
stalking under Missouri law, definition of consent under Missouri law and at the College, and information on 
how to be an effective bystander and reducing the risk of becoming a victim of the aforementioned crimes.  
Employees receive similar education and training during new employee orientation, employee forums and 
convocations, and annual mandatory online training courses. 
 
CoxHealth and Cox College offer various crime prevention programs, and security awareness programs, and 
self-defense or harassment/sexual assault prevention programs are offered on a continual basis.  The College 
presents awareness sessions on crime prevention information, including awareness on sexual assault (rape 
and acquaintance rape), Rohypnol abuse, and stalking, as well as educational sessions on personal safety.  A 
common theme of all awareness and crime prevention programs is to encourage students and employees to 
be aware of their responsibility for their own security and the security of others.  In addition to seminars and 
special events, information is disseminated to students and employees through crime prevention awareness 
handouts, posters, displays, videos, PowerPoints, and on the College information monitor.  When time is of 
the essence, information is released to the college community through security alerts, e-mails through the 
college’s electronic mail system, and signs or flyers posted throughout the College. 
 
 

Drug and Alcohol Policy 
 
It is the policy of Cox College to maintain a drug-free environment for both students and employees. A copy of the 
CoxHealth System’s policy on drug and alcohol in the workplace is available to all students upon request. The unlawful 
possession, use, or distribution of a controlled substance is prohibited on all property of Cox College or CoxHealth 
Systems. The possession, use, or distribution of alcohol is prohibited on Cox College premises or any premises of 
CoxHealth Systems. The transfer, sale, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs while on CoxHealth Systems premises could 
result not only in disciplinary action against the individual(s) involved, but also may result in legal prosecution. 
 
The College accepts only a high standard of professional integrity. Students are expected to remain drug free and in a 
suitable physical and mental condition for the learning environment. Drug screening will be performed on all students 
who are enrolled in the educational programs affiliated with CoxHealth Systems. Students suspected of being under 
the influence of drugs or alcohol will be removed from the College environment, placed on temporary suspension, and 
an evaluation will be done, which may include drug testing. Reasonable suspicion may be drawn from observable 
phenomena, abnormal conduct, and reports, information, or evidence. 
 
Violations of the foregoing standards and policies can result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge for 
employees and dismissal for students and referral for prosecution. Violations of these standards by students will be 
considered a violation of the Student Conduct Code and may result in dismissal, probation/suspension or imposition of 
a lesser sanction. Sanctions may also include referrals for appropriate rehabilitation. Information on alcohol and 
substance abuse can be found in the Academic Resource Center. Copies of this policy are given to students during 
college orientation, available in the Academic Resource Center, posted on the College website at www.coxcollege.edu, 
and referenced in both the College Catalog and Student Handbooks. 
  
Drug-Free Schools 
Cox College recognizes that misuse of alcohol and other drugs and the unlawful possession, use or distribution of illicit 
drugs and alcohol pose major health problems, are potential safety and security problems, can adversely affect 
academic, clinical, and job performance, and can generally inhibit the educational development of students. 

http://www.coxcollege.edu/


 

20 | P a g e   

 
Cox College is committed to the standards outlined by the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Anti-Drug 
Abuse Act of 1988, and the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989. As a result of this 
commitment, Cox College has established regulations forbidding students to engage in the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensing, possession or use of illegal or illicit drugs and alcohol on Cox College premises or property or 
as part of any Cox College activity planned for or by students. These regulations shall assure that Cox College is in 
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, regulations, and ordinances. 
 
Cox College encourages all members of the college community to maintain civic and social responsibility when making 
decisions regarding the use of alcoholic beverages off Cox College premises. If a student demonstrates unsafe and/or 
unprofessional behavior that violates professional standards or state practice acts of each academic program, or calls 
into question the professional accountability of the student, corrective action will follow. Students are expected to 
adhere to the standards of behavior required of healthcare professionals. A one-time deviation from safe practice may 
be sufficient to judge a student's behavior unsafe. 
 
Pre-Enrollment Drug Testing 
Directions for drug screening will be sent to all students who will be entering academic programs of the College 
or any educational program affiliated with CoxHealth.  Individuals who are unwilling or unable to complete the 
screening will be ineligible for matriculation based upon failure to complete the screening.  All test results are 
forwarded to the enrollment management department of Cox College who notifies the student of positive test 
results.  If a positive screen is received, the offer for matriculation is withdrawn, and the policy for positive testing 
is implemented.  The student may request a review of the findings. Individuals who test positive and request a 
retest can, at their own expense, have the specimen sent to any NIDA-certified lab of their choice.  A retest is 
performed on the same specimen.  Students may be asked to provide a medical evaluation by a licensed 
physician based on the findings of the drug screening. 
 
Practicing in a clinical setting or coming to class under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs (illegal or prescribed) is 
prohibited and warrants corrective action. If the College or a clinical site has reasonable suspicion that the student is 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol, the student will be removed from the college or clinical environment, placed 
on temporary suspension, and evaluated. The College may require a student to submit to a blood, breath, and/or 
urine test for drugs and/or alcohol. 
 
The Cox College Alcohol and Drug Policy is available in the College Catalog and Student Handbook. A copy of the policy 
is provided to all students during college orientation. Additional copies are available in the Academic Resource Center 
(ARC) or by contacting the Director of Compliance and Assurance. 
 
Alcoholic  Beverages 
Cox College is an affiliate of CoxHealth, and it is the objective of both CoxHealth and Cox College to maintain an 
alcohol and drug-free environment for both students and employees.  A copy of CoxHealth’s policy on drugs and 
alcohol in the workplace is available to all students and employees on the CoxHealth intranet at Policy 
Manager>Cox College.  The unlawful possession, use, or distribution of a controlled substance is prohibited on all 
property of Cox College or CoxHealth.  The possession, use, or distribution of alcohol is prohibited on Cox College 
premises or any premises of CoxHealth.  The transfer, sale, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs while on CoxHealth 
premises could result  not only in disciplinary action against the individual(s) involved, but also may result in legal 
prosecution. 
 
Substance Abuse Education/Prevention Programs 
Cox College and CoxHealth have developed a program to prevent the illicit use of drugs and the abuse of alcohol 
by students and employees.  The program provides services related to drug use and abuse including 
dissemination of informational materials, educational programs, counseling services, referrals, and college 
disciplinary actions.  Students and employees of the college may find information on alcohol and drug education 
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and assistance program information through the Academic Resource Center (ARC), from the Office of Compliance 
and Assurance, or through CoxHealth’s policies and resources.   
 
Student  Support/Counseling  Services 
Cox College’s student support program is a referral service coordinated by the Coordinator of Student Support.  
Students can consult with faculty and instructors, the Director  of  Compliance and Assurance/Tit le  IX 
Coordinator,  the Vice President of Academic Affairs, the Vice President of Student Affairs and College 
Advancement, staff within the ARC, and other College personnel. 
 
Counseling appointments take place off campus at the Murney Clinic or the MSU Center City Counseling Clinic; 
both clinics offer minimal-cost counseling.  College personnel are able to refer students to the appropriate 
community services available for counseling and treatment.   Information on alcohol and substance abuse can be 
found in the ARC, on the Web site, or through resources at CoxHealth.  Other community counseling and 
resource services are available. 
 
Off-Campus Community Resources 
 

Off-campus community counseling and treatment services are available from the following organizations: 
• Burrell Behavioral Health: 1300 Bradford Parkway, Springfield, MO 65804; 417-269-5400; 24-hour Crisis 

Service: 417-862-6555 
• Center City Counseling Center (MSU): 430 South Ave. Springfield, MO 65806; 417-895-5957 
• Carol Jones Recovery Center for Women: 2411 West Catalpa, Springfield, MO 65807; 417-862-3455 
• Cox-North Center for Addictions: 1423 North Jefferson Ave., Springfield, MO 65802; 417-269-2273 
• Murney Clinic: 1322 South Campbell, Springfield, MO; 417-865-8943 
• Ozarks Counseling Center: 1515 E. Battlefield, Suite A, Springfield, MO 65804; 417-869-9011 
• Mercy (Marian Center): 1235 East Cherokee, Springfield, MO; 417-885-3088 
• Sigma House: 800 South Park Ave., Springfield, MO; 417-862-3339 
• Christian Counseling Services: 614 South Ave., Springfield, MO 65806; 417-869-9011 
• The People Center: 1441 E. Kearney St. Springfield, MO 65803; 417- 840-7831 
• Revelations, LLC: 1435 E. Bradford Pkwy., Suite 105, Springfield, MO 65804; 417-353-7393 
• Lakeland Behavioral Health System: 440 S. Market St. Springfield, MO 65806; 417-865-5581 

 
Treatment fees may be covered by insurance, sliding-scale fees, pre-determined fees, self-pay, or free of charge.  
Please contact the individual agency to discuss payment policies and options. 
 
Tobacco Policy 
The college campus, as well as CoxHealth buildings, grounds and parking lots are tobacco free.  The CoxHealth 
policy states that tobacco use will not be permitted in or within 500 feet of the hospital and its facilities.  Facilities 
shall include all of the following areas owned and/or operated by the hospital: the physical campuses, parking 
facilities and adjacent offices, including administrative and physician offices and offices affiliated with the 
hospital but not physically adjacent to the hospital.  This also includes personal vehicles on the physical 
campuses.  Employees/students may not smoke or use tobacco in any form while wearing their CoxHealth photo 
ID badge or in CoxHealth issued uniforms, scrubs or other clothing provided by CoxHealth whether at work or off 
duty.  Employees/students may not smoke in their vehicles while on campus.  Employees/students with an 
offensive smoke odor on or in their clothing may be asked to change into a set of hospital issued scrubs or sent 
home on their own time to change clothes. Failure to comply may result in the application of formal sanctions. 
 
Sanctions: 

• Warning and notification in student notes in CAMS database 
• Referral to Student Services department for possible smoking cessation options 
• Disciplinary  action 
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Resources are available to students and employees interested in smoking cessation options.  For more 
information, contact the Academic Resource Center, Human Resources, or the Office of Compliance and Assurance. 
 
Alcohol, Drug and Substance Abuse - Local, State & Federal Legal Sanctions 
 
Springfield City Code prohibits the following acts: 
 
Alcohol  Offenses: 

a) Possession by minors under 21 years of age: The possession, actual or constructive, of any beer, 
 wine or intoxicating liquor by any person under the age of 21 years is prohibited.  A violation of 
 this section shall be punishable by a fine of not less than $500.00. (G.O. No. 5575, § 1, 7-10-2006) 
b) Open containers of alcoholic beverages in motor vehicles within the passenger compartment of any 
 motor vehicle: No person shall transport, carry, possess or have, and no driver shall permit the 
 transporting, carrying, possessing or having, of any alcoholic beverages within the passenger 
 area of any motor vehicle which is being operated upon a public way, except in the original 
 container and with the seal unbroken. (Code 1981, § 3-7.8; G.O. No. 5835, § 2, 9-8-20) 
c) Possession, sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages in public place. No person shall drink, sell, 
 give away, purchase or dispense alcoholic beverages as defined in section 78-189(b) in any street, 
 alley or other similar public place in the city, nor shall any person sell, dispense, give away, offer 
 to sell or possess or consume any beverage or drink containing alcohol in any public park or on 
 lands held by the city for park purposes. (G.O. No. 2892, Section 1) 
d) Possession of open containers on public ways and city parking lots.  No person shall transport, 
 carry, possess or have any alcoholic beverage on a public way or city parking lot except in the 
 original container with the seal unbroken. (Code 1981, § 26-3; G.O. No. 4583, §§ 1, 2, 2-5-1996; 
 G.O. No. 5977, § 2, 3-26-2012) 
e)  Driving while intoxicated. 

 
State Sanctions -  Missouri Statutes prohibits the following acts: 
 
Alcohol Offenses 
 

a) Purchase or possession by a minor.  Any person under 21 years of age who purchases, attempts to 
purchase, or possesses any intoxicating liquor is guilty of a misdemeanor. R.S.Mo. Section 311.325 
(1986). This offense is punishable by a fine of not less than $50.00 or more than $1000.00, or by 
imprisonment in the county jail for up to 1 year, or by both jail sentence and fine. R.S.Mo. Section 
311.880 (1986) Any person under 21 years of age who is convicted of any local or state offense 
involving the use or possessions of alcohol will be required to complete a substance abuse traffic 
offender program.  R.S.Mo. Section 577.525 (1990) 

 
Any person under 21 years of age who is convicted of any offense involving the possession or use of 
alcohol, committed while operating a motor vehicle, or any alcohol-related traffic offense, or upon a 
second conviction of any offense, involving the possession or use of alcohol may be punished as follows: 

First offense: 30-Day Suspension  
Second offense: 90-day suspension 
Third offense and thereafter: loss of his/her driver’s license for 1 year. R.S.Mo Section 577.500 (1990) 
 

Illicit Drug Offenses 195.202. 
1. Except as authorized by sections 195.005 to 195.425*, it is unlawful for any person to possess or have 

under his control a controlled substance. 
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2. Any person who violates this section with respect to any controlled substance except thirty-five grams or 
less of marijuana or any synthetic cannabinoid is guilty of a class C felony. 

3. Any person who violates this section with respect to not more than thirty-five grams of marijuana or any 
synthetic cannabinoid is guilty of a class A misdemeanor. 

(L. 1989 S.B. 215 & 58, A.L. 2010 H.B. 1472, A.L. 2011 H.B. 641) 
*Section 195.425 was repealed by H.B. 1965, 2010. 
 
A person who has been convicted of a class C or D felony may be sentenced: 
(1) To pay a fine which does not exceed five thousand dollars; or 
(2) If the offender has gained money or property through the commission of the crime, to pay an 

amount, fixed by the court, not exceeding double the amount of the offender's gain from the 
commission of the crime. An individual offender may be  fined  not  more  than  twenty  thousand 
dollars under this provision. 
1.  Except as authorized by sections 195.005 to 195.425 and except as provided in section 195.222, 

it is unlawful for any person to distribute, deliver, manufacture, produce or attempt to 
distribute, deliver, manufacture or produce a controlled substance or to possess with intent  to  
distribute, deliver, manufacture, or produce a controlled substance. 

2. Any person who violates or attempts to violate this section with respect to manufacturing or 
production of a controlled substance of any amount except for five grams or less of marijuana in 
a residence where a child resides or within two thousand feet of the real property comprising a  
public or private elementary or public or private elementary or secondary school, public 
vocational school or a public or private community college, college or university, or any school 
bus is guilty of  a class A felony. 

3. Any person who violates or attempts to violate this section with respect to any controlled substance 
except five grams or less of marijuana is guilty of a class B felony. 

4. Any person who violates this section with respect to distributing or delivering not more than five 
grams of marijuana is guilty of a class C felony. 

(L. 1989 S.B. 215 & 58, A.L. 1998 H.B. 1147, et al., A.L. 2003 S.B. 39) 

1. A person commits the offense of distribution of a controlled substance near schools if such   person 
violates section 195.211 by unlawfully distributing or delivering any controlled substance   to a 
person in or on, or within two thousand feet of, the real property comprising a public or private 
elementary or secondary school, public vocational school, or a public or private community college, 
college or university or on any school bus. 

2. Distribution of a controlled substance near schools is a class A felony which term shall be served 
 without probation or parole if the court finds the defendant is a persistent drug offender. 

(L. 1989 S.B. 215 & 58, A.L. 1996 H.B. 1301 & 1298, A.L. 2003 S.B. 39) 

 A person commits the crime of trafficking drugs in the first degree if, except as authorized by sections 
195.005 to 195.425, he distributes, delivers, manufactures, produces or attempts to distribute, deliver, 
manufacture or produce more than thirty grams of a mixture or substance containing a detectable amount 
of heroin. 

 
Federal  Sanctions - the United States Code prohibits the following acts: 
 
Illicit Drug Offenses 
 
Simple Possession: It is illegal for any person to knowingly or intentionally possess a controlled substance, unless 
such substance was obtained directly or pursuant to a valid prescription or order from a licensed health care 
giver. 21 U.S.C. § 844 
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Violations of this section are punishable by imprisonment for up to 1 year, a minimum fine of $5,000.00, or both.  
After a prior conviction(s), the sentence shall be a term of imprisonment of not more than 2 years, a fine of not 
more than $10,000.00, or both. 
 
Civil penalties up to $10,000.00  per  violation  may  be  assessed  against  any  individual  who knowingly possesses 
a controlled substance as listed in Section 401 (B) (1) (A) of the Controlled Substance  Act,  where  the  amount  
in  possession  is  determined  to  be  a  personal  use  amount.  21U.S.C. § 844 
 
Where a person at least 18 years of age distributes controlled substance to any person under 21 years of age, or 
where a person possesses with the intent to distribute, intent to distribute, or manufactures a controlled 
substance in, on, or within 1000 feet of a playground, youth center, public swimming pool, or video arcade 
facility, the punishment shall be a term of imprisonment of twice the amount of time and a fine of twice the 
amount above provided. 21 U.S.C. § 860 
 
Any person convicted of a drug offense under these federal laws shall forfeit to the government any property 
derived from or obtained directly or indirectly because of the violation. 21 U.S.C. § 853 
 
Any person who is convicted of any federal or state offense consisting of the distribution of controlled substances 
may be ineligible for any and all federal benefits for a minimum of 1 year. 21 U.S.C. § 862 (Federal Benefits 
includes federal grants or loans.) 
  
College Disciplinary Actions for Substance Abuse 
A violation of any law regarding alcohol is also a violation of the College’s Student Code of Conduct and will be 
treated as a separate disciplinary matter by the college. 
 
Violations of the foregoing standards and policies regarding drug and substance abuse can result in disciplinary 
action up to and including discharge for employees and dismissal for students and referral for prosecution.  
Violations of these standards by students will be considered a violation of the Student Conduct Code and may 
result in dismissal, probation/suspension, or imposition of a lesser sanction. Sanctions may also include referrals 
for appropriate rehabilitation. 
 
Program Review 
Because a biennial review of the alcohol, drug, and substance abuse program to determine its effectiveness is 
required in order to make changes whenever necessary and to ensure that the program is followed consistently, 
Cox College will join the Missouri Partners in Prevention higher education substance abuse consortium in the 
2017-2018 academic year. 
 
Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures 
 
In an effort to provide a safe campus and pursuant to Public Law 101-542, Cox College provides campus safety 
information to each student during orientation to the College. The student should refer to the Campus Security 
Reference and other security data posted on the college website for information about public safety, crime statistics, 
parking regulations and security policies and procedures at CoxHealth and the College. 
 
The College uses a mass alert notification system designed to keep the students, faculty and staff at Cox College 
informed during emergencies. Emergency communications from the college, including inclement weather 
announcements, will be sent as a text message/voice message and/or e-mail to those enrolled in the notification 
system. 
 
Cox Health Security provides services at Cox College, Cox North and Cox South. In an emergency, security personnel 
may be accessed from a phone within the college, Cox North or Cox South by dialing 333 or “0” for the switchboard 
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operator. Security personnel will also assist with unlocking car doors and charging batteries. To access CoxHealth 
Security, call 269-3715 (Cox North) or 269-6120 (Cox South). 
 
In an emergency on the Drury University campus, students should contact the Office of Continuing Education in C. 
Arch Bay Hall until 8:30 p.m. at 873-7207 or the Olin Library personnel until 12:00 midnight at 873-7338. 
  
Emergency Procedures 
It is the desire of Cox College to provide as safe an environment as possible for students. 
 

Fire 
Upon finding a fire in the College: 
• Notify anyone in the area that a fire exists. 
• Pull the nearest fire alarm. Fire alarms are located at every exit and at intervals along each hall. 
• Use appropriate judgment in utilizing fire extinguishers. 
• On exiting the room, close windows (if possible), close the door to the room to limit the spread of fire 

and smoke and evacuate the building. 
• Notify the receptionist (if possible), of the location, type and extent of the fire. 

 
Use of fire extinguishers 

• All fire extinguishers are dry chemical to enable them to be used safely on any type of fire. To allow 
ample time to escape the area, anyone attempting to use an extinguisher should be aware that the fire 
should be able to be contained within 30 seconds or less. If unable to smother or extinguish the fire 
within this period of time, the individual should simply exit, close the door, escape the area, pull the 
nearest fire alarm and notify the receptionist of the exact location of the fire. Students should be aware 
of the location of fire extinguishers. 

 
Evacuation of the College 

• Possible exits are clearly marked with “EXIT” signs. Maps are located by every fire alarm, as well as in 
strategic locations in hallways. Each map indicates two possible exits for that area. Use the nearest exit 
that is not obstructed by smoke or flames. 

• Evacuate immediately and remain calm. 
• Do not return to the building for any reason after evacuation has begun. 
• Do not use the elevator. 
• Individuals in the area of the college leave by the nearest exit and assemble on Jefferson Avenue on the 

sidewalk area across from the college entrance. 
• Students in classes or with a group should reassemble with that group. Faculty are responsible for 

identifying and reporting any absences to the individual in charge of roll call. 
• Any individual not in class or with a group at the time of evacuation should report to the individual in 

charge of roll call. 
 

Tornado 

• The Front Desk will be notified when a tornado warning is in effect and will notify occupants of the 
College via loudspeaker. 

• Proceed by the nearest stairs to the basement areas without windows. These areas are: 
o Classroom 5 
o Hallway outside classroom 5 
o Basement hall (keeping a safe distance from glass areas at either end of the hall) 

• The telephone in classroom 3 may be used for communication. 
• All individuals evacuated to the basement will remain there until an “ALL CLEAR” is sounded. 

 
Complete details about the Emergency Response Plan are available from the CoxHealth Department of Emergency 
Management, 417-269-4761 or can be found at the following web address: 
https://connect.coxhealth.com/emman/SitePages/Home.aspx 

https://connect.coxhealth.com/emman/SitePages/Home.aspx
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Inclement Weather 
In case of inclement weather, sound judgment should be exercised regarding safe travel. In the event classes are 
canceled, the College Alert System will notify students and college workforce, and President will notify news media.  
The college Inclement Weather policy is located on the college Web site: www.coxcollege.edu and on the CoxHealth 
Intraweb under Policy Manager – Cox College. Department heads, deans, or chairs should have contact phone 
numbers for their employees and be aware of inclement weather policies. 
 
Injuries to Faculty or Staff Members 
Faculty or staff members who sustain any work-related injury while employed with the College should complete an 
incident report. In addition to the incident report required by the College, individual clinical agencies may require an 
additional report of the incident. A faculty or staff member who is injured should initially seek medical evaluation at 
the Emergency Department, Cox North or Cox South campus.  
 
Injuries to Students 
Students are to report any injuries or accidents occurring during classroom or laboratory activities  to  a  faculty  
member  who  will  facilitate  completion  of  an  incident  report required by the college. Individual clinical agencies 
may require an additional report of the incident. Students who sustain injuries during nursing laboratory activities 
should be referred to the Emergency Departments on Cox North or Cox South campuses or to CoxHealth Urgent Care. 
 
 
Family Education Rights to Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 
 
Cox College abides by the Family Education Rights to Privacy Act of 1974 (“FERPA”), which contain guidelines 
for the handling and confidentiality of student records. FERPA gives students certain basic rights.  To review 
the Cox College’s policy concerning FERPA, consult the College Catalog. 
 
One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate 
educational interests. A school official is a person employed by the College in an administrative, supervisory, 
academic or research, or support staff position (including law enforcement unit personnel  and health staff); a 
person or company with whom the College has contracted (such as an attorney,  auditor, or collection agent); a 
person serving on the Board of Trustees; or a student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or 
grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. 
 
A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order 

to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Upon request, the College discloses educational records without 
consent to officials of another school in which a student seeks or intends to enroll. 
 
Conditions that apply to disclosure of information in health and safety emergencies: 

a. An educational agency or institution may disclose personally identifiable information from an education 
record to appropriate parties, including parents of an eligible student, in connection with an 
emergency if knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student 
or other individuals. 

 
b. Nothing in this Act or this part shall prevent an educational agency or institution from: 

 
1. Including in the education records of a student appropriate information concerning disciplinary 

action taken against the student for conduct that posed a significant risk to the safety or well-
being of that student, other students, or other members of the school community; 

 

http://www.coxcollege.edu/
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2. Disclosing appropriate information maintained under paragraph (b)(1) of this section to 
teachers and school officials within the agency or institution who the agency or institution has 
determined have legitimate educational interests in the behavior of the student; or 

 
3. Disclosing appropriate information maintained under paragraph (b)(1) of this section to 

teachers and school officials in other schools who have been determined to have legitimate 
educational interests in the behavior of the student. 

 
In making a determination under paragraph (a) of this section, an educational agency or institution may take into 
account the totality of the circumstances pertaining to a threat to the health or safety of a student or other 
individuals. If the educational agency or institution determines that there is an articulable and significant threat to 
the health or safety of a student or other individuals, it may disclose information from education records to any 
person whose knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other 
individuals. If, based on the information available at the time of the determination, there is a rational basis for 
the determination the Department will not substitute its judgment for that of the educational agency or 
institution in evaluating the circumstances and making its determination. See 20 U.S.C. 1232g (b)(1)(I) and (h). 
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